
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Wednesday, August 23, 2023 

8:45 A.M. 
MEMORIAL BUILDING – MEMORIAL HALL 

19 E. Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, IL 
(Tentative and Subject to Change) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) May 17, 2023 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 
a) Rolling calendar review  
b) Health and Wellness Week 
c) Hinsdale business update 
d) Sales tax update 
e) Update on capital projects 
f) Update on Hinsdale 150th Events 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

a) Holiday Events  
b) Downtown Parking update 

 
7. OTHER BUSINESS/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Items listed on the agenda will be discussed and considered by the Commission. The Commission welcomes 
public comment on the agenda items during discussion.  Items recommended for Board of Trustee approval at 
this meeting may be referred to the Board for further consideration at their next meeting.   
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 
to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting 
or the facilities, are requested to contact promptly Andrianna Peterson, ADA Coordinator, at 630-789-7005 
promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 
 

Visit the Village’s Web Site at www.villageofhinsdale.org 

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
Wednesday, May 17, 2023 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Chairman Jill Sunderson, Commissioners Lyn Burgess, Richard Eck,  
 Angela Lavelli, Carrie Thangamani, and Natalie Zelasko 
Absent: Commissioner Michael Kiyosaki  
Others Present: Eva Field, Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 
 Amanda Wagner, Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 
Staff Present:  Andrianna Peterson, Assistant Village Manager 
 Alex Snyder, Management Analyst 
 Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 
 Maggie South, Administrative Analyst 
 
Mr. Snyder introduced himself to the Commission and described his role in the Village. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. November 16, 2022 

Commissioner Lavelli made a motion to accept the minutes of the November 16 meeting as 
presented. Commissioner Burgess seconded the motion. Upon the call of the roll the vote was: 
Ayes: Commissioners Burgess, Eck, Lavelli, Thangamani, and Zelasko 
Nays: None 
Absent: Commissioner Kiyosaki 
 
The motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A. Rolling Calendar Review 

Ms. Peterson provided an update on the rolling calendar. The Village is continuing to offer its 
signature events in 2023 and will be enhancing them for the 150th anniversary. The next 
upcoming event for the Village is the Fourth of July Parade. Ms. Field and Ms. Wagner spoke 
about the upcoming events for the Chamber of Commerce, including the Fine Arts Festival, the 
Farmer’s Market, and Uniquely Thursdays. 2023 is the 50th anniversary of the Farmer’s Market 
and the 21st season for Uniquely Thursdays. The Chamber has revised and updated their 
sponsorship packages for Uniquely Thursdays.  
 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the Fourth of July parade. The route will be returning to 
its original route. The Village is encouraging participants and businesses to consider their own 
history in Hinsdale and incorporate it into their entries. The Village will be adding additional 
paid acts to enhance the parade for the 150th anniversary. Ms. South provided an update on 
the parade entries received at this point in time. The Commission requested that staff reach 
out to the local businesses to see if they would like to participate in the parade or the 150th 
anniversary celebrations. Ms. Peterson discussed different ways in which the business 
community could participate. The Commission discussed potential Grand Marshals for the 
parade. 

B. Shop local Campaign Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the campaign. Staff has been increasing the Village’s 
social media presence to keep shopping local top of mind. The Commission discussed ways to 



Economic Development Commission 
Meeting of May 17, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

increase the business presence in the campaign, such as including business logos on light 
pole banners and other promotional materials.  

C. Holidays in Hinsdale Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the holiday events and marketing efforts. Holidays in 
Hinsdale drew approximately 1,000 participants over the two weekends. Winter Wonderland 
drew over 500 participants to KLM and was sold out. Staff also sent out 250 personalized 
letters from Santa to residents. The Christmas Walk was extremely popular with record crowds 
coming out over the past several years.  

D. Restaurant Week Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on Restaurant Week. This year, the event was held April 
14th-23rd. Staff featured the architecture of different restaurant buildings and history-inspired 
food and drink specials in social media updates. Ms. Peterson provided social media metrics 
for the Commission. The Commission provided positive feedback on the marketing materials 
and event overall. 

E. Hinsdale Business Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the new businesses coming to town and current first floor 
occupancy rates in the downtown. The Commission and staff discussed the retail vacancies in 
the downtown as well as new businesses that are coming into Hinsdale. The Village is 
currently at a low retail and office vacancy rate overall.  

F. Sales Tax Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the Village’s sales tax revenue. The Village is showing 
healthy sales tax revenues. 

G. Downtown Pedestrian Walkway Update 
Ms. Peterson provided an update on the safety and aesthetic enhancements planned for the 
parking deck, including a brick pedestrian walkway and new landscaping, lighting, and 
wayfinding signage. The next step will be to go out to bid on the project. Staff plans to 
complete this work in 2023, contingent on bid pricing.  

H. Burlington Park and Washington Street Display Box 
Staff is looking to update the information in the black display boxes in Burlington Park and on 
Washington Street. This project is scheduled to be completed in 2023. 

I. Outdoor Dining Update 
Outdoor dining has begun for the season. Ms. Salmon provided an update on the program. 
Residents and businesses were surveyed regarding the program. Resident feedback was 
great, with many residents participating and offering positive feedback. There were some 
concerns about parking, maintenance, and traffic, but the community is largely in favor of the 
program. The Village Engineer is looking at creating permanent solutions for outdoor dining. 
The Commission and staff discussed parking in the downtown.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Gift Card Program 

Only 41 gift cards were sold last year, leading the program to operate at a loss despite 
aggressive marketing. Ms. Peterson discussed the benefits, challenges and limitations of the 
program. Staff is recommending that the Village evaluate the gift card program and would like 
input from the Commission. The consensus of the Commission is to end the program and not 
consider alternatives at this time. 
 
.  

 



Economic Development Commission 
Meeting of May 17, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

OTHER BUSINESS / DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Update on Hinsdale 150th Events 

Ms. Peterson provided information on the 150th events. Staff is keeping all signature events 
and is looking to enhance them wherever possible. The 150th ceremony was held at the Village 
Board meeting on May 2nd, which was well-attended. The Village will be hosting a light show 
event using the south side of the Memorial Building on August 17th, following Uniquely 
Thursdays. Staff looked at incorporating fireworks, but it was not feasible due to a number of 
reasons. The light show will be a unique event that will utilize the architecture of the building to 
project the lightshow. There will be a soundtrack for the show.  
 
In late summer, staff is planning a kick-off for the reconstruction of the Memorial Building plaza 
to celebrate the 150th Anniversary. Construction is proposed to begin around Labor Day. The 
plaza would be dedicated around the time of the Christmas Walk. There will be donation 
opportunities for the costs of the plaza and possibly a historic roof rail for the top of the 
Memorial Building. Staff is also planning to continue to meet with local organizations to 
incorporate their history into the 150th events. 

B. 2023 Meeting Schedule  
The next meetings are scheduled for August 16 and November 15. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the Commission, Commissioner Lavelli made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 10:03am. Commissioner Thangamani seconded the motion. Upon the call 
of the roll, the vote was: 
Ayes: Commissioners Burgess, Eck, Lavelli, Thangamani, and Zelasko 
Nays: None 
Absent: Commissioner Kiyosaki 
 
The motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 10:03am.  
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 
  Maggie South, Administrative Assistant 

 



Economic Development 
Commission Quarterly Report

August 23, 2023



Village, EDC & Chamber Rolling Calendar 2023

Tactic June July August September October November December

Promotions/Events

Shop Local 
Marketing Campaign

Outdoor Dining 
Street Closures

Annual Sidewalk Sale

Seasonal/Holiday 
Campaign

150th Anniversary

Fine Arts 
Festival 

(June 3-4)

Hinsdale’s Annual 
Sidewalk Sale (July 21-22)

Farmer’s 
Market 

(June 5 –
October 9)

Fourth of July 
Parade/Festival

Memorial Building 
Lightshow (August 17)

Hinsdale’s Annual 
Fall Sidewalk Sale

Christmas Walk 
(December 1)

Wine Walk 
(October 12)

Fall Festival 
(October 14)

Winter 
Wonderland 

(December 3)

Breakfast with Santa 
& Pizza with Santa 

(December 2)

Hinsdale for 
the Holidays 
(2 weekends 
in December)

Uniquely 
Thursdays 
(June 15 –

August 17)



Ongoing Shop Local Campaign

Marketing
• Street banners typically – currently occupied by 

150th campaign
• Posters placed at Hinsdale Train Station
• Posters placed at Burlington Park (when available)
• E-Hinsdale News
• Village Website



Health and Wellness Week

• Staff is proposing to postpone this 
event until the Spring. 

• Staff is working with the Chamber to  
partner on this event and possibly 
coordinate with Fitness in the Park.

• Consider ways to incorporate healthy 
living through Parks and Recreation into 
Health and Wellness Week.

• The Village has above average access to 
parks compared to the region according 
to CMAP Report. 

• This event will be included in 
Winter/Spring brochure.



Hinsdale Businesses New/Closed

Data From 
Choose DuPage

Hinsdale Businesses New/Closed

Name New Coming Relocating Closed Address Notes

Airoom X 36 S. Washington St. As of 8/15/2023

ElevareMD X 14 W. 1st St. As of 8/15/2023

Que Miso X 114 S. Washington St. As of 8/15/2023

Bake Homemade Pizza X 34 E. Hinsdale Ave As of 8/15/2023

Vacant (Formerly Nicho Niche) X 10 W. 1st St. As of 8/15/2023

Corner Bakery Café X 42 E. Hinsdale Ave As of 8/15/2023

Images Med Spa X from 18 W. 1st St. to 22 W. 1st St. As of 8/15/2023

Retail/Office Occupancy 

As of 8/10/2023

Location Retail Office

DuPage County 5.60% 16.20%

Elmhurst 1.70% 6.60%

Glen Ellyn 3.60% 8.90%

Clarendon Hills 3.70% 2.20%

Hinsdale 3.80% 9.20%

Naperville 5.10% 15.40%

Downers Grove 6.70% 17.80%

Wheaton 7.00% 9.30%



Retail Occupancy Rate

Retail Occupancy Rate

Data provided by Choose DuPage
Updated 8/10/2023

In summary, over the past twelve quarters the Village’s retail occupancy rate has decreased very slightly from 
96.9% to 96.2%. Choose DuPage suggests 90% occupancy as a healthy goal for the retail category.  



Office Occupancy Rate

Office Occupancy Rate

Data provided by Choose DuPage
Updated 8/10/2023

In summary, over the past twelve quarters the Village’s office occupancy rate has increased from 87.3% to 
90.8%. Choose DuPage suggests 75% occupancy as a healthy goal for the office category. 



Sales Tax Revenue

When comparing the totals from Q1 2022 to Q1 2023, the Village of Hinsdale’s sales tax revenue increased by $11,661. 
Q1 2023 state sales tax revenue* was $915,871, and was $904,210 in Q1 2022. 

* Does not include Non-Home Rule Sales Tax

Updated 
8/10/2023

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Q1 Sales Tax By Category

 Q1 2023  Q1 2022 Q1 2021 Q1 2020 Q1 2019



Update On Capital Projects

Updating the Burlington Park and Washington Street Display 
Boxes is included in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). This 
project is expected to be deferred to 2024. This project 
includes repairing and painting the display boxes at both 
Burlington Park and on Washington Street. 

The retail directory insert at Washington Street is in the 
process of being updated and will be displayed this fall. 

Burlington Park
The two display boxes in Burlington Park consist of three 
separate display spaces with the ability to display information 
on one side. The Burlington Park display box is used primarily 
for promotion of events/activities.  

Washington Street
The display box on Washington Street has the ability to 
display information on both sides. The Washington Street 
display box is used primarily for displaying the retail directory.

Washington Street Display Sign



Hinsdale 150th Sesquicentennial Events Update



villageofhinsdale.org/150

DONATE NOW

HINSDALE 150:
 
 

CAMPAIGN

Memorial Building
Historic Plaza and Roof Railing

DONATE NOW





DONATION
LEVEL

3

 Our Levels

Leadership: $10,000 and above
Benefactor: $5,000 - $9,999
Partner:  $1,000 - $4,999
Supporter: $500 - $999
Patron: $250 - $499
Friend: $249 and under

Recognition at the plaza commemoration
ceremony
Name included on a plaque, Village website,
and in The Hinsdalean
Display of support through a yard/window
sign

Donations of $5,000
or above

Inclusion on the Village website, and in The
Hinsdalean
Display of support through a yard/window
sign

Donations  below
$5,000



HISTORY OF THE
MEMORIAL BUILDING

A patriotic ceremony was held on July 4, 1928 to dedicate the newly completed Hinsdale Memorial Building. The
Memorial Building was built to honor the men from Hinsdale who served in the wars, a tribute particularly to
those who went out from the Village and did not return. Mr. Philip R. Clarke, Chairman of the Hinsdale Memorial
Building Committee, appreciated that the project must be community-wide in order to truly express the gratitude
and civic pride of the Village. It was unanimously agreed that the memorial should take the form of a functional
building, rather than an unserviceable monument. To erect a building to serve, and honor those who served,
impressed the Committee as an utmost tribute to the memory of their heroes. In April 1927, the plans of architect
Edwin H. Clark for the new Hinsdale Memorial Building at 19 E. Chicago Avenue, were accepted at a Village
meeting, and a drive began to raise the $150,000 needed to pay for the project. Ninety percent of the funds needed
were raised by the end of the first week. 

Architect George Maher noted the building's hilltop location as Hinsdale’s “natural front yard." 

The design of the building is reportedly based on Philadelphia’s Independence Hall. The Memorial Building
originally housed a number of rooms for local organizations, the Village offices, and the Public Library. Also, the
foyer at the heart of the building, “the shrine of memory," contains a commemorative work by noted sculptor
Oskar Hansen. The Memorial Building has always stood, both literally and figuratively, at the heart of Hinsdale.

The brick, 2 ½ story structure is a fine example of Colonial Revival design. A classic cornice above the second story
windows on the original building is decorated with modillions and moldings. Four columns with ornate capitals
support a central pedimented pavilion on the south (primary) elevation. Bedford stone sills and lintels define the
windows and form two belt-courses around the building. Large, multi-paned windows in the central pavilion of the
north elevation have round-arched tops. The building also has a tall Colonial Revival cupola that contains a clock
tower. 

The Village Board designated the property as a Historic Landmark on February 6, 2001 by adopting Ordinance
O2001-6, making the Memorial Building the first local Historic Landmark in the Village.





RENDERINGS

PROPOSED CONCEPT PLAN – SUBJECT TO FUNDING

PROPOSED RESTORATION PLAN – SUBJECT TO FUNDING



6

SAMPLE
_____________, 2023
[INSERT DONOR NAME AND ADDRESS]
Re: Acknowledgement of Cash Donation

Dear ____________:
The Village of Hinsdale, an Illinois municipal corporation, (the
“Village”) would like to thank you for the donation of $ received by
the Village on , 2023. No goods or services were exchanged in return
for your cash donation. The Village's EIN number is 36-6005930.

Your donation was made to the Village for a public purpose and is tax
deductible under Internal Revenue Code Section 170(c)(1).

 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, ILLINOIS

By: _________________________________
Alison Brothen, Finance Director

 

SAMPLE TAX DEDUCTION FORM

Village of Hinsdale
19 East Chicago Avenue

Hinsdale, Illinois 60521-3431
(630) 789-7000



19 E. Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521

(630) 789-7005
150@villageofhinsdale.org
villageofhinsdale.org/150

ADDRESS

CONTACT

HOW TO DONATE

Individual/Family/Business: __________________________________________________________________________________________

Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Category:                 Plaza                         Roof Railing                      Plaza and Roof Railing

Donation Amount: ________________________                      Keep my donation recognition anonymous

Method of Payment (Circle One):       Credit Card           Check             Cash
Credit card payments may be taken over the phone. Checks made payable to the Village of Hinsdale.                               

SIGNATURE: _________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The Village is planning a future donation phase dedicated to the renovation
of the interior of the Memorial Building, which will celebrate its 100th

anniversary in 2028.

Give back to your community with a tax-deductible donation below.

Pay Online by scanning the QR Code 
Cash - walk-in or use dropbox - include form below
Checks - payable to the Village of Hinsdale at 19 E. Chicago
Ave - include form below
Credit card over the phone - call (630) 789-7005

FOUR EASY WAYS:

DONATE NOW

mailto:150@villageofhinsdale.org


Holiday Events

Parks and Recreation Fall/Winter brochure registration went live 
August 7th

• Breakfast with Santa and Pizza with Santa are scheduled for December 2nd and Winter 
Wonderland is scheduled for December 3rd.
• All three of these events are held at KLM Lodge. 

• Breakfast and Pizza with Santa are currently sold out with waitlists, and Winter 
Wonderland is showing strong registration. 
• These events will accommodate a total of 760 participants. 

• Staff is also offering Santa’s Mailbox this year – December 1st – 8th

• In 2022, staff replied to over 500 letters from children in Hinsdale. 

• Holiday lights in Burlington Park is to be same general design as last year with 
updated lighting. 

• Possible train theme to tie into 150th anniversary. 

• Work with businesses on themes such as window displays, ice sculptures, etc. 

• Hinsdale for the Holidays – two weekends in December, in partnership with the 
Chamber of Commerce. 



Downtown Parking Update



Future Meeting Dates

It is proposed that the Economic Development Commission meets on the third Wednesday of the 
second month of each quarter at 8:45 a.m.

Upcoming 2023  Meeting Dates

• November 15, 2023


	47848756-6089-43e9-bf31-3b40d0153ea6.pdf
	EDC 08.23.2023
	EDC 08.23.2023
	Final Pitch Packet
	EDC 08.23.2023


